

**COMHAIRLE CATHRACH CHORCAÍ
HALLA NA CATHRACH
CORCAIGH**



**CORK CITY COUNCIL
CITY HALL
CORK**

Bíodh a fhios agat go dtionólfar cruinniú de Chomhairle Cathrach Chorcaí ar an dáta thíosluaite, ar a **5.30 A CHLOG I.N., AR MICROSOFT TEAMS** chun na gnóthaí seo a leanas a dhéanamh:-

Take notice that a Meeting of Cork City Council will be held on the undermentioned date, at the hour of **5.30 P.M. ON MICROSOFT TEAMS** for the transaction of the following business:-

GNÁTHCHRUINNIÚ – DÉ LUAIN, 8^ú SAMHAIN 2021

ORDINARY MEETING – MONDAY, 8th NOVEMBER 2021

1. **LORD MAYOR'S ITEMS**

An Chomhairle to consider any item the Lord Mayor may wish to raise.

2. **CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S ITEMS**

An Chomhairle to consider any item the Chief Executive may wish to raise.

3. **MINUTES**

An Chomhairle to consider, and if so decided to approve as correct record and sign the minutes of:-

- Ordinary Meeting of An Chomhairle held, 26th October 2021.

4. **QUESTION TIME**

Questions submitted enclosed.

5. **STATUTORY ITEMS**

5.1 **PROPERTY DISPOSALS**

An Chomhairle to consider the reports of the Chief Executive, dated 28th October 2021 on the following property disposals:-

1. Disposal of interest in property known as No.11, Gartan Park, Douglas, Cork to Cork County Council, County Hall, Carrigrohane Road, Cork for the sum of €1.00.
2. Disposal of the freehold interest in a plot of ground, measuring approximately 234m² situated adjacent to “Araglin House”, Brookhill, Glanmire, Cork to Michelle and Patrick Considine, c/o Barry C. Galvin & Son Solicitors, 91, South Mall, Cork for the sum of €1,000.00 together with costs in the sum of €1,500.00 plus V.A.T.
3. Disposal of the freehold interest in Nos. 1-7, Gillabbey Court, off Gillabbey Street, Cork, to Threshold, c/o O’Sullivan, O’Dowd Solicitors, No.1, Blackhall View, Blackhall Place, Dublin 7, D07 FR59, for the sum of €6.35 together with costs in the sum of €550.00 plus VAT.
4. Disposal by way of exchange of an area of land (approximately 526m²) situated over part of land known as “The Donkey Field” Grange Road, Frankfield, Cork to Bruce and June Matthews, c/o Breen Walsh Solicitors LLP, No. 80, South Mall, Cork and, by way of exchange, Bruce and June Matthews will transfer an adjacent area of land (measuring approximately 2924m²) to Cork City Council.
5. Disposal of interest in area of land approximately 148m² situated at Thomas Street, Cork to Mercy University Hospital, Cork CLG, c/o Doyle Solicitors, 31, South Bank, Crosses Green, Cork for the sum of €1.00.
6. Disposal of interest in property known as No. 50, Fort Hill, Moneygurney, Douglas, Cork to Cork County Council, County Hall, Cork for the sum of €1.00.
7. Disposal of interest in property known as No. 26, Ros Ard, Upper Glanmire, Whites Cross, Cork to Cork County Council for the sum of €1.00.
8. Disposal of interest in property known as No. 123, Ros Ard, Upper Glanmire, Whites Cross, Cork to Cork County Council for the sum of €1.00.

6. **CORPORATE POLICY GROUP – 1st NOVEMBER 2021**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the Corporate Policy Group, and if so decided to approve following recommendations from its meeting held, 1st November 2021.

6.1 **REPORT ON MOTION**

6.1.1 **FUTURE CONTRACTS RELATING TO THE ENGLISH MARKET**

Members considered the report of the Director of Services, Corporate Affairs & International Relations, dated 28th October 2021 on the following motion:-

‘That Cork City Council moves to exclude Aramark from future contracts relating to the English Market due to conditions they have presided over within institutions such as Direct Provisions and internationally such as the US prison system.’

(Proposer: Cllr. F. Ryan 21/380)

Decision of Group

The group agreed that the report of the Director of Services would be entered on the agenda for the next Ordinary Meeting for consideration by An Chomhairle.

6.1.2 **FORMS ON THE WEBSITE IN PLAIN ENGLISH**

Members considered the report of the Director of Services, Corporate Affairs & International Relations, dated 28th October 2021 on the following motion:-

‘That Cork City Council, following on from very successful work of Cork City Library as recognised by the National Adult Literacy Agency, will provide forms and information on the website in plain English, especially forms for services such as housing. If it is not possible for Cork City Council to change forms (for example HAP) that Cork City Council will write to the Minister for Housing to ask that the department provides that all forms are available in plain English for all local authorities.’

(Proposer: Cllr. L. Bogue 21/402)

Decision of Group

The group agreed that the report of the Director of Services would be entered on the agenda for the next Ordinary Meeting for consideration by An Chomhairle.

7. **PARTY WHIPS – 26th OCTOBER 2021**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the Party Whips, and if so decided to approve the following recommendations from its meeting held, 26th October 2021.

7.1 **LORD MAYOR ITEMS**

7.1.1 **NOVEMBER MEETINGS OF AN CHOMHAIRLE**

An tArdmhéara invited a discussion regarding the nature of forthcoming meetings of An Chomhairle. Party Whips were advised that the nature of the Annual Budget Meeting would need to be taken into account for the advertisement to be placed in the media on November 4th.

Decision of Party Whips

Members agreed that it would be prudent for the Ordinary and Budget meetings of An Chomhairle scheduled for the 8th and the 15th November 2021 respectively, to be held via Microsoft Teams and live-streamed and the situation would be reviewed at the next meeting of Party Whips. Party Whips also decided that in the interests of consistency that a Special Meeting of An Chomhairle at Cork Airport would be deferred until such a time a physical meeting would be possible. It was agreed to recommend these decisions to An Chomhairle for approval.

8. **STRATEGIC, ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, ENTERPRISE & PLANNING STRATEGIC POLICY COMMITTEE – 28th OCTOBER 2021**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the Strategic, Economic Development, Enterprise & Planning Strategic Policy Committee, and if so decided to approve the following recommendations from its meeting held, 28th October 2021.

8.1 **DRAFT CORK CITY HERITAGE AND BIODIVERSITY PLAN 2021-2026**

The Director of Services provided a report dated 28th October for the Committee to consider. Niamh Twomey outlined the process and content in the Draft Cork City Heritage and Biodiversity Plan 2021-2026.

Decision of Committee

It was agreed to accept the report of the Director of Services, Strategic and Economic Development, and to refer it to An Chomhairle for approval.

8.2 **HERITAGE PUBLICATION GRANTS – COPY EDITOR GRANTS**

The Director of Services provided a report dated 28th October for the Committee to consider.

Decision of Committee

It was agreed to accept the report of the Director of Services, Strategic and Economic Development and to refer it to An Chomhairle for approval.

8.3 **CORRESPONDENCE FROM OFFICE OF THE MINISTER FOR AGRICULTURE, FOOD AND THE MARINE**

The Director of Services outlined the correspondence and stated there is a working group in place to review this issue and an update will be provided to the Committee in the new year.

Decision of Committee

The Committee welcomed this response from the Director of Services, Strategic and Economic Development and agreed to refer it to An Chomhairle for consideration.

8.4 **MOTIONS**

8.4.1 **CITY DEVELOPMENT PLAN**

Members considered the report of the Director of Services, Strategic & Economic Development, dated 6th October 2021 on the following motion:-

‘That the City Development Plan include policies and objectives, which will regenerate, re-develop and increase footfall in and around the City Centre by encouraging the development of more student accommodation complexes closer to the City Centre.’

(Proposer: Cllr. S. O’Callaghan 21/319)

Decision of Committee

The Committee agreed to accept the report of the Director of Services, Strategic & Economic Development, and to refer it to An Chomhairle for approval.

8.4.2 **INCLUSIVE PUBLIC SPACE**

Members considered the report of the Director of Services, Strategic & Economic Development, dated 6th October 2021 on the following motion:-

‘That Cork City Council will investigate including an objective in the development plan that relates to the issue of inclusive public space and encouraging inclusivity in retail space for autistic people, or people who have other sensory requirements. A specific initiative that could be explored is the encouragement of quiet spaces in the design and operation of retail outlets and public spaces in Cork City.’

(Proposer: Cllr. L. Bogue 21/359)

Decision of Committee

The Committee agreed to accept the report of the Director of Services, Strategic & Economic Development, and to refer it to An Chomhairle for approval.

9. **ROADS & TRANSPORTATION STRATEGIC POLICY COMMITTEE – 18th OCTOBER 2021**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the Roads & Transportation Strategic Policy Committee, and if so decided to approve the following recommendations from its meeting held, 18th October 2021.

9.1 **UPDATES/REPORTS**

9.1.1 **CORK BUS CONNECTS**

The Committee considered the report of the Director of Services, Infrastructure Development Directorate, dated 5th October 2021 regarding Cork Bus Connects.

Decision of Committee

It was agreed to accept the report and to refer it to An Chomhairle for approval.

9.1.2 **PARKING PERMITS IN CORK CITY**

The Committee considered the report of the Director of Services, Roads & Environment Operations Directorate, dated 7th October 2021 regarding the Parking Permits in Cork City.

Committee Decision

It was agreed to accept the report and to refer it to An Chomhairle for approval.

9.2 **MOTIONS**

9.2.1 **AUDIT OF FOOTPATHS**

The Committee noted the report of the Director of Services, Roads & Environment Operations Directorate, dated 1st October 2021 on the following motion:-

‘When estates are built it is often the case that footpaths are laid on the public road as part of the development process. In areas all over the city there are sections of footpath that begin and end without connection. Often there are small sections left that would link these paths to others creating cohesive walkways. I am calling on Cork City Council to perform an audit of footpaths to identify these sections and to formulate a strategy that would address these shortcomings. While funding for this project may not be available within council budget this is surely a project that would provide untold benefits to communities and as such be considered for national funding with a dedicated team formed to deliver across the city.’

(Proposer: Cllr. D. Boylan 21/232)

Decision of Committee

It was agreed to accept the report and to refer it to An Chomhairle for approval.

9.2.2 **INSTALL AIR COMPRESSORS AT WALKWAYS**

The Committee noted the report of the Director of Services, Infrastructure Development Directorate, dated 1st October 2021 on the following motion:-

‘That Cork City Council would install air compressors for bikes, buggies, wheelchairs etc. installed at the different walkways across the city.’

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Moloney 21/274)

Decision of Committee

It was agreed to accept the report and to refer it to An Chomhairle for approval.

9.2.3 **RELOCATION OF DISABLED PARKING BAYS**

The Committee noted the report of the Director of Services, Roads & Environment Operations Directorate, dated 1st October 2021 on the following motion:-

‘That a review be undertaken on the relocation of disabled parking bays on the city centre island to ensure that access is similar if not improved from their previous locations.’

(Proposer: Cllr. D. Boyle 21/278)

Decision of Committee

It was agreed to accept the report and to refer it to An Chomhairle for approval.

9.2.4 **CCMA EV CHARGING WORKING GROUP**

The Committee noted the report of the Director of Services, Roads & Environment Operations Directorate, dated 1st October 2021 on the following motion:-

‘That Cork City Council will report on progress of the CCMA EV Charging Working Group and consequently the process of putting in place local guidelines for EV charging infrastructure, and how this is affecting the roll-out of EV charging infrastructure in the city.’

(Proposer: Cllr. O. Moran 21/332)

Decision of Committee

It was agreed to accept the report and to refer it to An Chomhairle for approval.

9.2.5 **OUTDOOR BICYCLE REPAIR STANDS**

The Committee noted the report of the Director of Services, Infrastructure Development Directorate, dated 1st October 2021 on the following motion:-

‘That Cork City Council install outdoor bicycle pump repair stands at various locations throughout the city.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. O’Flynn 21/296)

Decision of Committee

It was agreed to accept the report and to refer it to An Chomhairle for approval.

9.2.6 **VEHICLE RESTRICTIONS ON PATRICK STREET**

The Committee noted the report of the Director of Services, Infrastructure Development Directorate, dated 1st October 2021 on the following motion:-

‘That the hours of operation of restrictions on private motor vehicles using Patrick's Street will be extended to begin mid-morning and that rising bollards or bus lane cameras will be installed to ensure compliance.’

(Proposer: Cllr. O. Moran 21/354)

Decision of Committee

It was agreed to accept the report and to refer it to An Chomhairle for approval.

10. **HOUSING STRATEGIC POLICY COMMITTEE – 19th OCTOBER 2021**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the Housing Strategic Policy Committee, and if so decided to approve the following recommendations from its meeting held, 19th October 2021.

10.1 **HOUSING PROGRESS REPORT**

Members considered the report on Housing for August 2021.

Decision of Committee

It was agreed to accept the report of the Acting Director of Services, Housing, and recommend it to An Chomhairle for approval.

10.2 **MOTIONS**

10.2.1 **SUPPORT FOR ELDERLY TENANTS**

Members considered the report of the Acting Director of Services, Housing, dated 15th October 2021 on the following motion:-

‘Conscious of the age profile of some of our longest standing housing tenants who may not be able to carry out work such as painting or garden maintenance in their properties, that Cork City Council examines possibility of providing or sourcing such supports either from its own resources or in co-operation with outside agencies (e.g. Age Action Ireland, CE schemes, schools, Gaisce, Scouts/Guides etc).’

(Proposer: Cllr. M. Finn 21/194)

Decision of Committee

It was agreed to accept the report of the Acting Director of Services, Housing, and recommend it to An Chomhairle for approval.

10.2.2 **RETROFITTING OF PUBLICLY OWNED DOMESTIC PROPERTIES**

Members considered the report of the Acting Director of Services, Housing, dated 15th October 2021 on the following motion:-

‘That Cork City Council will report on progress to date and the strategy going forward for the energy-saving retrofitting of publicly-owned domestic properties in the city, including the current BER rating of publicly-owned domestic property in the city.’

(Proposer: Cllr. O. Moran 21/209)

Decision of Committee

It was agreed to accept the report of the Acting Director of Services, Housing, and recommend it to An Chomhairle for approval.

11. **SOUTH CENTRAL LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE – 27th OCTOBER 2021**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the South Central Local Area Committee from its meeting held, 27th October 2021.

11.1 **STABILISATION WORKS TO VERNON MOUNT HOUSE**

The Committee considered the report of the Director of Services, Strategic & Economic Development Directorate, dated 21st October 2021 on the following motion:-

‘That Cork City Council carry out the necessary stabilisation works to Vernon Mount House as a matter of great urgency, so as to ensure that the remaining structure is secured for eventual re-use in a manner that is compatible with the historic and architectural significance of the building. According to the report prepared by the Conservation Engineer, Mr. David Kelly for Cork County Council in October 2017, the necessary stabilisation works would cost approximately €43,200. These works urgently need to be carried out both from a public safety point of view and to ensure that this unique and historic architectural site is preserved for future generations as an integral part of the enlarged Tramore Valley Park.’

(Proposer: Cllr. S. O’Callaghan 21/144)

Decision of Committee

It was agreed to accept the report of the Director of Services and that the motion would go onto the Council floor.

12. **SOUTH WEST LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE – 27th OCTOBER 2021**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the South West Local Area Committee from its meeting held, 27th October 2021.

13. **NORTH EAST LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE – 27th OCTOBER 2021**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the North East Local Area Committee from its meeting held, 27th October 2021.

14. **NORTH WEST LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE – 27th OCTOBER 2021**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the North West Local Area Committee from its meeting held, 27th October 2021.

15. **SOUTH EAST LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE – 27th OCTOBER 2021**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the South East Local Area Committee from its meeting held, 27th October 2021.

16. **FINANCE & ESTIMATES COMMITTEE – 1st NOVEMBER 2021**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the Finance & Estimates Committee, and if so decided to approve the following recommendations from its meeting held, 1st November 2021.

16.1 **FINANCE RELATED REPORTS**

16.1.1 **FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO END OF SEPTEMBER 2021**

Members considered the Financial Statements to end of September 2021.

Decision of Committee

It was agreed to note the Financial Statements and refer to An Chomhairle for approval.

17. **CORRESPONDENCE**

An Chomhairle to note correspondence, if any.

18. **CONFERENCE/SEMINAR SUMMARIES**

An Chomhairle to note summaries by Members of Conferences/Seminars attended, if any.

19. **CONFERENCES/SEMINARS**

An Chomhairle to approve attendance at Conferences/Seminars tabled on the night, if any.

20. **TRAINING**

An Chomhairle to approve attendance at training tabled on the night, if any.

20.1 **LAMA AUTUMN TRAINING SEMINAR**

An Chomhairle to retrospectively approve the attendance of Comhairleoirí T. Shannon and K. O'Flynn at the LAMA Autumn Training Seminar, Planning and Mental Health, held at the Sligo Park Hotel, Pearse Road, Sligo from the 3rd to 5th November 2021.

20.2 **AILG TRAINING PROGRAMME MODULE 2**

An Chomhairle to retrospectively approve the attendance of Comhairleoir D. Forde at the AILG Training Programme Module 2, Elected Members Mental Health & Well-Being and Briefing on the National Office for Suicide Prevention held at the Clayton Hotel, Monivea Road, Ballybrit, Galway on the 6th November 2021.

21. **CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S MONTHLY MANAGEMENT REPORT**

An Chomhairle to note the Chief Executive’s Monthly Management Report for September 2021.

22. **MOTIONS REFERRED TO COMMITTEES**

An Chomhairle to note the motions on Appendix 1 attached, that have been referred to the relevant Committees as determined by the Meetings Administrator, due notice of which has been given.

23. **MOTIONS**

23.1 **GAMBLING LEGISLATION PROVISION**

‘That legislation discouraging the harmful effects of gambling include a provision that under 18 year olds not be admitted to race meets where on track betting exists.’

(Proposer: Cllr. D. Boyle 21/446)

23.2 **SITE OF THE OLD CORK PRISON, RATHMORE ROAD**

‘That Cork City Council will directly request the Minister for Justice to dispose to Cork City Council the site of the old Cork Prison on Rathmore Road at the value of €1 with the specific direction that Cork City Council will develop the site to provide social and affordable houses and a community centre where social enterprises and start up companies could set up and develop.’

(Proposer: Cllr. J. Maher 21/453)

ALMA MURNANE
MEETINGS ADMINISTRATOR

Chuíg gach ball de Chomhairle Cathrach Chorcaí.

4^ú Samhain 2021

APPENDIX 1

MOTIONS

An Chomhairle to note the referral to the relevant Committee of the following motions, due notice of which has been given:-

1. **TRAFFIC CALMING AT KILLEENS**

‘That Cork City Council introduce traffic calming measures at Killeens outside the estates of Laois Cara, Cork.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. O’Flynn 21/334)

North East Local Area Committee – 22/11/21

2. **AMENITIES IN MAYFIELD AND MONTENOTTE**

‘That Cork City Council identifies areas throughout Mayfield and Montenotte for residents’ amenities including playgrounds and recreational areas to be included in the Cork City development plan.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. O’Flynn 21/385)

North East Local Area Committee - 22/11/21

3. **RESURFACE PUMP STREET, BLARNEY**

‘That Cork City Council resurface Pump Street, Blarney.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. O’Flynn 21/386)

North West Local Area Committee – 22/11/21

4. **REGENERATION OF THE NBA HOUSES IN MAYFIELD**

‘That Cork City Council engage with the Department of Housing regarding an entire regeneration of the NBA houses in the Mayfield area, similar to what was carried out in Knocknaheeny.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. O’Flynn 21/387)

North East Local Area Committee – 22/11/21

5. **PRUNE TREES AT CASTLE GARDENS, BLARNEY**

‘That Cork City Council prune the trees at the entrance to Castle Gardens, Blarney as these trees are blocking the public lighting.’

‘Go ndéanfaidh Comhairle Cathrach Chorcaí prúnáil ar na crainn ar an mbealach isteach go Gáirdíní an Chaisleáin, an Bhlarna, os rud é go bhfuil siad ag ceilt na soilse poiblí.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. Collins 21/425)

North West Local Area Committee – 22/11/21

6. **RESURFACE WHITETHORN DRIVE AND CASTLE GARDENS, BLARNEY**

‘That Cork City Council resurface Whitethorn Drive and Castle Gardens, Blarney.’

‘Go ndéanfaidh Comhairle Cathrach Chorcaí athdhromchlú ar Chéide na Sceiche Gile agus ar Gháirdíní an Chaisleáin, an Bhlarna.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. Collins 21/426)

North West Local Area Committee – 22/11/21

7. **LIGHTING AT WHITETHORN DRIVE AND CASTLE GARDENS, BLARNEY**

‘That Cork City Council improve the public lighting in Whitethorn Drive and Castle Gardens Blarney.’

‘Go bhfeabhsaíonn Comhairle Cathrach Chorcaí na soilse poiblí i nGáirdíní an Chaisleáin agus Céide na Sceiche Gile, an Bhlarna.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. Collins 21/427)

North West Local Area Committee – 22/11/21

8. **PUBLIC TOILET AT CURRAGHKIPPANE CEMETERY**

‘That Cork City Council install a public toilet at the new Curraghkippane cemetery.’

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Fitzgerald 21/428)

North West Local Area Committee – 22/11/21

9. **ZEBRA CROSSING/PEDESTRIAN CROSSING ON GLASHEEN ROAD**

‘Following on from my motion below on the 8th July 2019, can I please receive an update to see if it is possible to install a zebra crossing / pedestrian crossing in this area please.’

1.19 ZEBRA CROSSING/PEDESTRIAN CROSSING ON GLASHEEN ROAD

‘To have a zebra crossing / pedestrian crossing installed on the Glasheen Road coming out of Tara Lawn across to the Bus Stop across the road on the Glasheen Road, by Lisieux Park. This is a very busy and dangerous road and the residents are very fearful trying to cross the road to get the bus. As we are trying to get people out of their cars and into public transport we have to make it safe for them to do so. While there is a cross down the road by School Avenue there is no footpath on that side of the road for people to walk up to the bus stop safely.’ (Proposer: Cllr. T. Moloney 19/177)’

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Moloney 21/429)

South West Local Area Committee – 22/11/21

10. **CONTROLLED CROSSING AT HARTLANDS AVENUE**

‘That in light of issues relating to speed and safe road crossing at the location, consideration be given to install a pedestrian or controlled crossing on Hartlands Avenue near the Lough to facilitate safe access to the amenity for a wide range of people (i.e. school children, elderly etc) and that an electronic speed monitoring sign be considered for the area also.’

(Proposer: Cllr. M. Finn 21/430)

South West Local Area Committee – 22/11/21

11. **TRAFFIC LIGHTS IN CORK**

‘On behalf of group of blind and vision impaired people living in Cork.

1. That all new lights in Cork are accessible with audible indicators.
2. That all traffic lights without audible indicators should be retrofitted as soon as possible.
3. Council will consider extending the duration of the time allocated for pedestrians when crossing the road.
4. Council will establish an online portal to enable citizens to report inaccessible or malfunctioning traffic lights, and to suggest locations requiring the installation of new traffic lights.’

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Moloney 21/431)

Roads & Transportation Strategic Policy Committee – 20/12/21

12. **FOOTPATHS AND ROADS AT WHITEOAKS ESTATE**

‘That Cork City Council would carry out a survey on the footpaths and roads within Whiteoaks Estate.

- Assess the roads with a view to putting in place a resurfacing programme
- Put a plan in place to add footpaths within the estate as there are several parts of the estate where people have to walk on the roadway.’

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Moloney 21/432)

South West Local Area Committee – 22/11/21

13. **WAITING TIMES FOR TRAVELLER FAMILIES ON THE HOUSING LIST**

‘That the CE will examine the waiting times for Traveller families on the housing list.’

(Proposer: Cllr. C. Finn 21/433)

Housing Strategic Policy Committee – 21/12/21

14. **PRIORITISATION OF PEDESTRIANS AND VULNERABLE ROAD USERS**

‘That the CE will enforce within the planning rules the prioritisation of pedestrians and vulnerable road users in the transport adjustments for essential road works.’

(Proposer: Cllr. C. Finn 21/434)

Roads & Transportation Strategic Policy Committee – 20/12/21

15. **FUNDING TO IMPROVE WALKING AND CYCLING INFRASTRUCTURE**

‘That the CE will examine funding streams available for quick wins to improve existing walking and cycling infrastructure.’

(Proposer: Cllr. C. Finn 21/435)

Roads & Transportation Strategic Policy Committee – 20/12/21

16. **ADEQUATE FOOTPATHS IN PLANNING APPLICATIONS**

‘That the CE will endeavour to ensure within the planning system that adequate footpaths are a basic minimum for all planning applications.’

(Proposer: Cllr. C. Finn 21/436)

Community, Culture & Placemaking Strategic Policy Committee – 18/11/21

17. **MURALS AT DOUGLAS SWIMMING POOL**

‘That the Council’s arts and recreation sections consider working with artists to create murals, in order to enliven Douglas Swimming Pool’s exterior walls. Potential topics could be water safety or themes of environment and energy efficiency.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. McCarthy 21/437)

South East Local Area Committee – 23/11/21

18. **REFUSE CHANGE OF USE PLANNING APPLICATIONS FOR SHORT TERM LETS**

‘That Cork City Council recognises that:

- private rental cost in Cork city has risen by 13% in the last 12 months
- the Simon Community found that there were only 4 rental properties within HAP limits advertised in March this year
- that potential homes are being lost to short-term let solutions
- Cork City is a rent pressure zone
- Section 7 of Guidance Note for Local Authorities for Regulating Short Term Letting gives clear guidance on the refusal of change of use planning for short-term letting on grounds of 'general housing demand and need in the area, including the extent of the local authority's social housing list'
- that homelessness is a serious issue in Cork City
- there are thousands of people waiting on Cork City Council's social housing waiting list

And agrees to:

- Refuse all change of use planning applications under the Residential Tenancies (Amendment) Act 2019 for short-term lets for a period of 3 years or until such a time as a full vote of Cork City Council determines the demand to no longer outweigh the need in the private rental sector.’

(Proposer: Cllr. E. Ryng 21/438)

Community, Culture & Placemaking Strategic Policy Committee – 18/11/21

19. **PARENT AND BABY PARKING SPACES IN CITY OWNED CAR PARKS**

‘That Cork City Council will install parent-and-baby car parking spaces in city-owned car parks.’

(Proposer: Cllr. O. Moran 21/439)

Roads & Transportation Strategic Policy Committee – 20/12/21

20. **LOCAL PUBLIC RECYCLING AND COMPOST POINTS**

‘That Cork City Council will install local public recycling and compost points in the city to support residents unable to travel to the civic amenity centre.’

(Proposer: Cllr. O. Moran 21/440)

Environment, Water & Amenity Strategic Policy Committee – 16/11/21

21. **REMOVE RUBBISH BETWEEN SPRING LANE AND NORTH RING ROAD**

‘That Cork City Council will remove the accumulation of rubbish in the walkway between Spring Lane and the North Ring Road following a clean-up by residents.’

(Proposer: Cllr. O. Moran 21/441)

North East Local Area Committee – 22/11/21

22. **MOSS WALLS ON PATRICK’S STREET AND GRAND PARADE**

‘That Cork City Council will measure the effectiveness of the moss walls on Patrick's Street and Grand Parade in providing a 'clean air bubble' from air pollution.’

(Proposer: Cllr. O. Moran 21/442)

South Central Local Area Committee – 22/11/21

23. **TIDY UP IN CURRAHEEN**

‘That Cork City Council notes that;

1. The alley ways to the rear of the houses at Curraheen Drive:-

- have become treacherous underfoot due to moss and other growth.
- have evidence of litter.
- and are currently suffering from lack of light due to an outage of the streetlight in the alley.

2. The open spaces in front of the bungalows at Curraheen Crescent;-

- have become overgrown.
- are dangerous as a result of uneven and broken slabs.

Cork City Council notes further that:

- the alleyways are used by residents for moving refuse bins to the appropriate place.
- that the above issues are causing issues for residents, particularly the elderly and those who may be challenged in terms of mobility.

Therefore, Cork City Council commits to:

- Tidying up the above referenced areas.
- Work with Electric Skyline to restore light to the alleyway.

And

- To take appropriate action to make the above named areas safe underfoot for residents and the general public alike as soon as possible. This will involve removal of moss, growth and grime and also replacement of the broken slabs with an appropriate surface.’

(Proposer: Cllr. E. Ryng 21/443)

South West Local Area Committee - 22/11/21

24. **PEDESTRIAN CROSSING OUTSIDE BRIDGEFIELD HOUSING ESTATE**

‘That Cork City Council would install a pedestrian crossing outside of Bridgefield housing estate on lower Curraheen Road close to Red FM. There are approx. 200-300 residence, respond

housing apartments and a montessori/crèche facility as well as a City West CAP, Brothers of Charity Services all inside the Bridgefield Estate. It would be beneficial to all to have a pedestrian crossing in place for the safety of all these individuals. There is a crossing here with an island however as the cars do not slow down it is vital that a pedestrian crossing be installed at this section of the road.'

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Moloney 21/444)

South West Local Area Committee – 22/11/21

25. **HIGHER FEES FOR GREENFIELD DEVELOPMENTS**

'That consideration be given to scaling planning development fees so that higher fees be sought for greenfield over brownfield developments and that projects involving the restoration or bringing back into use of derelict properties not be subject to fees at all.'

(Proposer: Cllr. D. Boyle 21/445)

Community, Culture & Placemaking Strategic Policy Committee – 18/11/21

26. **TWINNING WITH COMPARABLE EUROPEAN CITIES**

'That the Council consider twinning with comparable European cities, such as Utrecht in The Netherlands or Aarhus in Denmark, where innovative urban planning and active travel measures have, and are, taking place.'

(Proposer: Cllr. D. Boyle 21/447)

International Relations & Tourism Strategic Policy Committee – 15/11/21

27. **INCLUDE CROSS DOUGLAS ROAD AS A 30KPH TRAFFIC ZONE**

'That the Cross Douglas Road be included in the 30kph traffic zones with already proposed adjoining streets and estates.'

(Proposer: Cllr. D. Boyle 21/448)

South Central Local Area Committee – 22/11/21

28. **INCLUDE BAKERS ROAD FLATS IN THE CITY NORTH WEST REGENERATION SCHEME**

'That Cork City Council include Bakers Rd. flats in the 'City North West Regeneration Scheme' to look at options including demolishing and rebuilding standard housing units on site.'

'Go gcuirfidh Comhairle Cathrach Chorcaí árasáin Bhóthar na mBáicéirí san áireamh sa 'Scéim Athnuachana na Cathrach Thiar Thuaidh', chun féachaint ar roghanna lena n-áirítear leagadh agus atógáil aonaid chaighdeánacha tithíochta ar an láthair.'

(Proposers: Cllr. M. Nugent, Cllr. K. Collins 21/449)

North West Local Area Committee – 22/11/21

29. **DESIGNATE KNOCKPOGUE AVENUE AS A 30KPH ZONE**

‘That Cork City Council designate the section of Knockpogue Ave, Farranree near the various schools a 30KH zone.’

‘Go ndéanfaidh Comhairle Cathrach Chorcaí zón 30km/u den chuid d'Ascaill na Cnapóige, Fearann an Rí atá cóngarach leis na scoileanna éagsúla.’

(Proposers: Cllr. M. Nugent, Cllr. K. Collins 21/450)

North West Local Area Committee – 22/11/21

30. **NAME NORTH WEST REGIONAL PARK AFTER FR. SEAMUS O'CALLAGHAN**

‘That Cork City Council name the new North West Regional Park 'Fr. O'Callaghan Park' after Fr. Seamus (James) O'Callaghan who was shot dead by the Black & Tans at the home of Alderman Liam De Róiste TD in Sunday's Well, in a search for De Róiste, on the 15th May 1921. For some years Fr. O'Callaghan's GAA Club played on pitches within the area designated for the regional park.’

‘Go dtabharfaidh Comhairle Cathrach Chorcaí an t-ainm 'Páirc an Athar Uí Cheallacháin' ar Pháirc nua Réigiúnach an Iarthuaiscirt, mar chomóradh ar an Athair Séamas Ó Ceallacháin ar scaoil na Dúchrónaigh marbh é ag baile an Bhardasaigh Liam de Róiste TD ag Tobar an Domhnaigh, agus iad ar thóir de Róiste, ar an 15ú Bealtaine 1921. Ar feadh roinnt blianta, d'imir club CLG an Athar Uí Cheallacháin ar pháirceanna imirthe atá sa limistéar ainmnithe don pháirc réigiúnach.’

(Proposers: Cllr. M. Nugent, Cllr. K. Collins 21/451)

Centenary Commemoration 2019-2023 Steering Committee

31. **INCLUDE KILLEEN'S PLACE IN THE TRAFFIC CALMING PROGRAMME**

‘That Cork City Council include Killeen's Place, Farranree in the 2022 traffic calming programme.’

‘Go gcuirfidh Comhairle Cathrach Chorcaí Plás na gCillíní, Fearann an Rí san áireamh i gclár moillithe tráchta 2022.’

(Proposers: Cllr. M. Nugent, Cllr. K. Collins 21/452)

North West Local Area Committee – 22/11/21

32. **INDUCTION PROGRAMME FOR NEWLY ELECTED COUNCILLORS**

‘That Cork City Council develop an induction programme for newly elected Councillors. This programme would involve meeting with relevant officials and staff in the various departments, tour of Council offices and cover the protocols and what’s expected from Councillors at meetings.’

(Proposer: Cllr. J. Maher 21/454)

Corporate Policy Group – 06/12/21

33. **STREET LIGHTING AND FOOTPATHS AT BALLINCOLLIE ROAD**

‘That Cork City Council would provide adequate street lighting and footpaths on the Ballincollie Road, Ballyvolane, by Kinvara Close.’

(Proposer: Cllr. J. Maher 21/455)

North East Local Area Committee – 22/11/21

34. **CALISTHENICS GYM IN THE NORTH EAST WARD**

‘That Cork City Council would provide a calisthenics gym in one of the parks in the North East Ward.’

(Proposer: Cllr. J. Maher 21/456)

North East Local Area Committee – 22/11/21